
Southern California Library Cooperative 
Executive Committee Meeting 

Thursday, August 22, 2024 
1:00 - 2:00 pm 

Hybrid Meeting 

Altadena Main Library 
600 E. Mariposa St., Altadena, CA 91001 

Alternate Locations: 
Commerce Public Library, 5655 Jillson St., Commerce, CA 90040 

Simi Valley Public Library, 2969 Tapo Canyon Rd., Simi Valley, CA 93063 

 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA 

All items may be considered for action. 

1. Opening Hilda LohGuan 
a. Chairperson’s Welcome
b. Roll Call

2. Public Comment
Opportunity for any guest or member of the public to address the Committee on
any item of SCLC business.

3. Consent Calendar       Hilda LohGuan
(ACTION)
All items on the consent calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Any
Council member may request an item be removed from the consent calendar and
placed on the agenda for discussion.

a. Minutes of the May 29, 2024, Executive Committee regular meeting

4. Adoption of the Agenda Hilda LohGuan 

Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85484792496?pwd=e8845loiJHtkfQ3qS9pmP0bwhHkjMm.1 

Meeting ID: 854 8479 2496 
Passcode: 667851 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85484792496?pwd=e8845loiJHtkfQ3qS9pmP0bwhHkjMm.1


5. Budget Status Report for FY 2023/24 Andy Beck 
(DISCUSSION)

6. Review of 2025 Health Care Premiums Andy Beck 
(ACTION)

7. Mentorship Program Update and Approval of Christine Powers 
Materials (ACTION)

8. Other Hilda LohGuan 
“...that is, matters initiated in the present meeting.” Robert’s Rules of Order, 
Revised, III, p.21.  Limited by Brown Act to discussion only. 

9. Adjournment Hilda LohGuan 

Southern California Library Cooperative 
222 E. Harvard St. • Glendale, California 91205 

(626) 283-5949 •  Fax (626) 283-5949
Website : http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail : sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

2



Email completed forms to: sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

ACTION ITEMS 

Meeting: ________SCLC Executive Committee Meeting____________________ 

Date: ___________August 22, 2024____________________________________ 

Library: ___________________________________________________________ 

Name: ____________________________________________________________

Signature: ______________________ 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Date: ______________________ 

Agenda Item:  ___________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

3



Southern California Library Cooperative 
Executive Committee Meeting 

Wednesday, May 29, 2024 
1:00 – 2:00 pm 

Hybrid Meeting 

Billy Jean King Main Library 
200 W. Broadway, Long Beach, CA 90802 

Alternate locations: 

Azusa City Library, 729 N. Dalton Ave., Azusa, CA 91702 
Simi Valley Public Library, 2969 Tapo Canyon Rd., Simi Valley, CA 93063 

Minutes draft 
Attendance   Other  
Behle, Kelly – SVPL  Beck, Andy – SCLC  
Broman, Susan – LAPL  Powers, Christine – SCLC 
Goldman, Elizabeth – BUR  Snodgrass, Nerissa - SCLC 
Hassen, Leila – AZU Walker, Wayne – SCLC 
Herbert, Mark – ESPL 
LohGuan, Hilda – AHM 
Nasr, Mandy - CAM 
Walker-Lanz, Jesse – LACO 

1. Opening Jesse Walker-Lanz 
Meeting called to order at 1:01 pm.

2. Public Comment
Opportunity for any guest or member of the public to address the Council on any 
item of SCLC business. 
None 

3. Consent Calendar Jesse Walker-Lanz 
(ACTION)

All items on the consent calendar may be approved by a single motion. Any 
Council member may request an item be removed from the consent calendar and 
placed on the agenda for discussion. 

a. Minutes of the March 27, 2024, Executive Committee meeting
b. Minutes of the March 27, 2024, Special Closed Session Executive 4

EC Agenda Item 3a



Committee meeting 
c. Proposed SCLC Holidays FY 2024/25

MSP (LohGuan/Behle) to pass the Consent Calendar, without changes. 
7 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain 

4. Adoption of Agenda Jesse Walker-Lanz 
Chair adopts the Agenda as presented, without objection.
Many Nasr joined at 1:07 pm.

5. Budget Status Report for FY 2023/24 Andy Beck
(DISCUSSION)
Controller Andy Beck provided an update regarding the status of SCLC’s budget for FY
2023/24.

6. CLSA Plan of Service and Budget for FY 2024/25 Christine Powers
(ACTION)
MSP (Goldman/Broman) Recommend to the Administrative Council that $365,773 in roll
over funds be allocated as distribution to members to use for eResources, and authorize
staff to work with Chair to complete and sign the FY 2024/25 Plan of Service and Budget for
submission to the State Library.
8 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain

7. Consideration of Other Post Employment Benefits Christine Powers
(ACTION)
MSP (LohGuan/Herbert) Recommend to the Administrative Council to authorize the
SCLC Chair to sign Resolution No. 2024-01 Fixing the Employer Contribution Under the
Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act at an Equal Amount for Employees
and Annuitants. The resolution would set the monthly contribution for retiree health
benefits to the PEMHCA minimum and would become effective January 2025.
8 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain

8. Proposed Budget for FY 2024/25 Andy Beck
(ACTION)
MSP (Herbert/Nasr) Recommend to the Administrative Council to approve the
FY 2024/25 Proposed Budget, pending final approvals of CLSB and the Governor’s
budget.
8 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain

9. Consideration of SCLC Mission and Vision Christine Powers
Statements
(ACTION)
MSP (Broman/LohGuan) Recommend to the Administrative Council to consider
approving option 2A.
8 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain

10. Other Jesse Walker-Lanz 
“...that is, matters initiated in the present meeting.” Robert’s Rules of Order, 
Revised, III, p.21. Limited by Brown Act to discussion only. 

None 5



11. Adjournment Jesse Walker-Lanz 
MSP (LohGuan/Behle) to adjourn meeting at 1:49 pm.

6



EC Agenda Item 5 

REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA LIBRARY COOPERATIVE 

DATE:  August 22, 2024  
FROM: Andy Beck, Controller 

SUBJECT: Budget Status Report for FY 2023/24 (DISCUSSION) 

BACKGROUND:  Budget Status Report for Fiscal Year 2023/24 is attached for review 
and reflects reconciled bank statements through June 30, 2024. 

Financial highlights for revenues include the receipt of 100% of FY 2023/24 
membership dues. For expenses, there have been no unexpected expenses since the 
last meeting. 

There is a surplus of $25,915 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

RECOMMENDATION: Information 

EXHIBITS:  
a. Budget Status Report
b. Bank Statements (April - June 2024)

7



Southern California Library Cooperative

Budget Status Report

June 30, 2024

Proposed

Budget FY22/23 FY2324 Amount Percent Percent

FY 23/24 Actual Actual Unrealized Unrealized Realized Note

Revenues:

CLSA baseline revenue (communications and delivery) 599,447$         142,870$         436,575$         162,872$         27% 73% Rollover = 39,843; CLSA = 559,604

CLSA system administration 139,900           140,833           139,900           ‐  0% 100% Received in December 2023

Fiscal and administration revenues 223,784           211,702           221,285           2,499                1% 99% CLSA = 202,209; Shared expense = 21,575

Grant project revenues 1,226,432        2,377,231        1,914,962        (688,530)          ‐56% 156%

Grant indirect revenues 131,523           161,330           154,803           (23,280)            ‐18% 118%

Grant staffing revenues 142,045           84,781              167,702           (25,657)            ‐18% 118%

Membership dues 237,064           210,681           237,065           (1)  0% 100% Lump sum billing; 100% received

Califa membership dues 13,590              13,590              13,591              (1)  0% 100% Lump sum billing; 100% received

Investment income 100,000           40,115              115,955           (15,955)            ‐16% 116% LAIF and CEPPT reported quarterly

Other 1,000                2,485                1,867                (867)  ‐87% 187%

Total revenues 2,814,785        3,385,618        3,403,705        (588,920)          ‐21% 121%

Expenditures:

CLSA baseline expenditures:

V Office supplies 14,500              5,907                7,123                7,377                51% 49%

V E‐Resources 369,647           1,212                321,638           48,009              13% 87%

V Contract services for delivery 172,500           68,206              63,026              109,474           63% 37% Reliant

Contract services 19,000              15,869              19,250              (250)  ‐1% 101% Audit; GASB 75

Telecommunications 21,800              16,681              24,245              (2,445)               ‐11% 111% Internet; website; IT; Phone; VOIP; Zoom

Resource sharing ‐  34,995              ‐  ‐  PY ‐ Scanners; CY ‐ No allocation

Capital Outlay 2,000                ‐  1,293                707  35% 65%

Total CLSA baseline expenditures 599,447           142,870           436,575           162,872           27% 73%

CLSA administration expenditures:

Personnel

Salary and wages 603,693           517,555           627,738           (24,045)            ‐4% 104% Severance pay

Retirement benefits 62,700              46,628              60,668              2,032                3% 97%

Unfunded pension liability 151,107           152,775           146,217           4,890                3% 97% Discount with one time payment

Health insurance ‐ current employees 56,000              46,491              55,083              917  2% 98%

Health insurance ‐ retired employees 46,300              47,102              44,973              1,327                3% 97%

Dental and vision 5,400                5,063                5,236                164  3% 97% Ameritas

Life insurance 2,300                1,214                1,554                746  32% 68% Lincoln; Dearborn

Other personnel expenses 15,500              14,394              15,034              466  3% 97% Payroll tax; Workers comp

Total personnel expenditures 943,000           831,222           956,503           (13,503)            ‐1% 101%

Other

V Payroll processing 7,000                7,766                6,950                50  1% 99% Paychex; Paychex HR; Time/Attendance

Accounting software 4,000                3,969                4,118                (118)  ‐3% 103% Lump sum payment

Office space rent 25,800              25,716              25,716              84  0% 100%

Insurance 2,400                2,280                2,373                27  1% 99% General liability

V Travel/conference/meeting 10,000              9,028                8,075                1,925                19% 81% Retreat

Membership dues 14,600              13,848              13,943              657  5% 96% Payment to Califa

V Legal 12,000              11,220              6,560                5,440                45% 55%

Professional other ‐  79,423              ‐  ‐  PY Accountant; Consultant

V Other 3,000                3,590                2,015                985  33% 67% GASB 68 report

Total other expenditures 78,800              156,840           69,750              9,050                11% 89%

Total CLSA administration expenditures 1,021,800        988,062           1,026,253        (4,453)               0% 100%

Grant project expenditure 1,226,432        2,377,231        1,914,962        (688,530)          ‐56% 156%

Total expenditure 2,847,679        3,508,163        3,377,790        (530,111)          ‐19% 119%

Deficit of revenues over expenditures (32,894)$          (122,545)$        25,915$           (58,809)$          179% ‐79%

Chase 1,754,232$     

U.S. Treasuries 1,954,247       

Local Agency Investment Fund 165,007          

CA Employer's Pension Prefunding Trust 94,314             

Total 3,967,800$     

SCLC ACCOUNT BALANCES

8

EC Agenda Item 5a



Southern California Library Cooperative

Budget Status Report

June 30, 2024

Beginning Addition Deletions Ending

E‐Resources ‐$                  379,630$         ‐$                  379,630$        

Delivery ‐  150,487           (42,465)            108,022          

Contracted services ‐  15,764              (16,014)            (250)                 

Office supplies ‐  11,723              (3,730)               7,993               

Capital outlay ‐  2,000                ‐  2,000               

‐$                  559,604$         (62,209)$          497,395$        

Beginning Addition Deletions Ending

E‐Resources 445,338$         ‐$                  (44,039)$          401,299$         Remaining $365,773

Delivery 21,854              ‐  (21,854)            ‐ 

Contracted services 3,236                ‐  (3,236)               ‐ 

Telecommunications 30,000              ‐  (20,726)            9,274               

Office supplies 3,393                ‐  (3,393)               ‐ 

503,821$        ‐$                  (93,248)$          410,573$        

Beginning Addition Deletions Ending

E‐Resources 288,419$         ‐$                  (212,963)$        75,456$           Pressreader

Telecommunications 3,519                ‐  (3,519)               ‐ 

291,938$        ‐$                  (216,482)$        75,456$          

Beginning Addition Deletions Ending

E‐Resources 64,636$          ‐$                  (64,636)$         ‐$                  Pressreader

64,636$          ‐$                  (64,636)$         ‐$                 

FISCAL YEAR 2020‐21

CLSA FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR 2023‐24

FISCAL YEAR 2022‐23

FISCAL YEAR 2021‐22

9



10

EC Agenda Item 5b



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



EC Agenda Item 6 

REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA LIBRARY COOPERATIVE 

DATE:  August 22, 2024  
FROM: Andy Beck, Controller 

SUBJECT: Review of 2025 Health Premiums (ACTION) 

BACKGROUND: Southern California Library Cooperative (SCLC) employees eligible for 
medical insurance receive a monthly allowance to be used toward medical insurance 
premiums. Currently, one out of the four SCLC employees is enrolled in the CalPERS 
Health Plan. CalPERS increases health premiums annually effective January 1st. The 
last health premium allowance increase from $896.33/month to $949.15/month was 
approved on August 23, 2023, by the Administrative Council for the 2024 calendar year. 
This health premium increase was split 50/50 between employees and SCLC, and was 
the first time that employees were asked to split the increased cost. 

The exhibit included with this report reflects calendar year 2025 health premium 
increases for CalPERS Health Plans. For the SCLC active employee, the premium 
increase totaled 8.96%. The financial burden to the SCLC employee would be an 
additional $42.23 per pay period. To negate this financial burden in proportion to the 
increase in health premiums, the health premium allowance would need to increase 
$42.23 per pay period to $480.30 per pay period, or $1,040.64 per month. Alternatively, 
the financial burden can be split equally between the employee and SCLC resulting in 
an increase of $21.12 per pay period to $459.19 or $994.90 per month. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Increasing the current health premium allowance to cover the entire 
increase ($42.23/pay period or $91.50/month) would increase SCLC’s cost by $4,392 
for the 2025 calendar year (4 actives x $91.50/month = $366.00/month).  

Alternatively, increasing the current health premium allowance to cover half of the 
increase ($21.12/pay period or $45.76/month) would increase SCLC’s cost by $2,196 
for the 2025 calendar year (4 actives x $45.76/month = $183.04/month). 

28



RECOMMENDATION: Recommend to the Administrative Council the increase of 
SCLC’s health premium allowance by $45.76/month or $91.50/month, effective January 
1, 2025, to address increasing health care premiums. 

EXHIBITS: 
a. CalPERS 2025 Health Premium

29



 

Basic Premiums, Attachment 1, Page 1 of 3 

July Board of Administration Offsite 
Statewide 2025 Premiums Per Subscriber Per Month (PSPM) 
State & California State University Members 

Basic Plans 
2024 2025 Percent 

Change Single 2-Party Family Single 2-Party Family 
Anthem Blue Cross Select HMO $925.57 $1,851.14 $2,406.48 $1,021.71 $2,043.42 $2,656.45 10.39% 
Anthem Blue Cross Traditional HMO $1,197.94 $2,395.88 $3,114.64 $1,309.07 $2,618.14 $3,403.58 9.28% 
Blue Shield Access+ HMO $892.49 $1,784.98 $2,320.47 $965.86 $1,931.72 $2,511.24 8.22% 
Blue Shield Trio HMO $810.24 $1,620.48 $2,106.62 $909.10 $1,818.20 $2,363.66 12.20% 
Health Net Salud y Más $656.96 $1,313.92 $1,708.10 $753.72 $1,507.44 $1,959.67 14.73% 
Kaiser Permanente $964.15 $1,928.30 $2,506.79 $1,045.20 $2,090.40 $2,717.52 8.41% 
Kaiser Permanente Out of State $1,312.45 $2,624.90 $3,412.37 $1,422.26 $2,844.52 $3,697.88 8.37% 
Sharp Performance Plus $833.24 $1,666.48 $2,166.42 $868.45 $1,736.90 $2,257.97 4.23% 
UnitedHealthcare SignatureValue Alliance $882.98 $1,765.96 $2,295.75 $961.35 $1,922.70 $2,499.51 8.88% 
UnitedHealthcare SignatureValue Harmony $763.70 $1,527.40 $1,985.62 $820.13 $1,640.26 $2,132.34 7.39% 
Western Health Advantage HMO $807.23 $1,614.46 $2,098.80 $914.27 $1,828.54 $2,377.10 13.26% 
Basic HMO Weighted Average 8.72% 
PERS Gold $859.31 $1,718.62 $2,234.21 $943.70 $1,887.40 $2,453.62 9.82% 
PERS Platinum $1,215.87 $2,431.74 $3,161.26 $1,335.30 $2,670.60 $3,471.78 9.82% 
Basic PPO Weighted Average 9.82% 

Total Basic Weighted Average 9.08% 

30

EC Agenda Item 6a



 

Medicare Premiums, Attachment 1, Page 2 of 3 

July Board of Administration Offsite 
Statewide 2025 Premiums Per Subscriber Per Month (PSPM) 
State, Public Agencies, and Schools Members 

Medicare Plans 
2024 2025 Percent 

Change Single 2-Party Family Single 2-Party Family 
Anthem Medicare Preferred PPO $405.83 $811.66 $1,217.49 $487.56 $975.12 $1,462.68 20.14% 

Blue Shield Medicare PPO (Nationwide) $392.68 $785.36 $1,178.04 $448.28 $896.56 $1,344.84 14.16% 

Kaiser Permanente Senior Advantage $324.79 $649.58 $974.37 $343.08 $686.16 $1,029.24 5.63% 

Kaiser Permanente Senior Advantage Summit $386.55 $773.10 $1,159.65 $408.31 $816.62 $1,224.93 5.63% 

Kaiser Permanente Senior Advantage Out of State $318.43 $636.86 $955.29 $336.72 $673.44 $1,010.16 5.74% 

Kaiser Permanente Senior Advantage Summit Out of State $380.21 $760.42 $1,140.63 $401.97 $803.94 $1,205.91 5.72% 

Sharp Direct Advantage HMO $256.53 $513.06 $769.59 $272.44 $544.88 $817.32 6.20% 

UnitedHealthcare Group Medicare Advantage PPO (Nationwide) $341.72 $683.44 $1,025.16 $442.25 $884.50 $1,326.75 29.42% 
Medicare Advantage Weighted Average 12.58% 
PERS Gold $406.60 $813.20 $1,219.80 $546.13 $1,092.26 $1,638.39 34.32% 

PERS Platinum (Nationwide) $448.15 $896.30 $1,344.45 $584.70 $1,169.40 $1,754.10 30.47% 
Medicare Supplement Weighted Average 30.59% 

Total Medicare Weighted Average 22.55% 

31



 

                 
              

            

           

  

Basic Premiums, Attachment 1, Page 3 of 3 

July Board of Administration Offsite 
Regional 2025 Premiums Per Subscriber Per Month (PSPM) 
Public Agency & School Members 

Basic Plans 
2024 2025 Percent 

Change Single 2-Party Family Single 2-Party Family 
Basic Premiums - Region 1 

Alameda, Alpine, Amador, Butte, Calaveras, Colusa, Contra Costa, Del Norte, El Dorado, Glenn, Humboldt, Lake, Lassen, Marin, Mariposa, 
Mendocino, Merced, Modoc, Mono, Monterey, Napa, Nevada, Placer, Plumas, Sacramento, San Benito, San Francisco, San Joaquin, San Mateo, 

Santa Clara, Santa Cruz, Shasta, Sierra, Siskiyou, Solano, Sonoma, Stanislaus, Sutter, Tehama, Trinity, Tuolumne, Yolo and Yuba 

Anthem Blue Cross Select HMO $1,138.86 $2,277.72 $2,961.04 $1,256.65 $2,513.30 $3,267.29 10.34% 
Anthem Blue Cross Traditional HMO $1,339.70 $2,679.40 $3,483.22 $1,500.40 $3,000.80 $3,901.04 12.00% 
Blue Shield Access+ HMO $1,076.84 $2,153.68 $2,799.78 $1,170.17 $2,340.34 $3,042.44 8.67% 
Blue Shield Trio HMO $946.84 $1,893.68 $2,461.78 $1,134.79 $2,269.58 $2,950.45 19.85% 
Kaiser Permanente $1,021.41 $2,042.82 $2,655.67 $1,112.90 $2,225.80 $2,893.54 8.96% 
PERS Gold $914.82 $1,829.64 $2,378.53 $1,013.70 $2,027.40 $2,635.62 10.81% 
PERS Platinum $1,314.27 $2,628.54 $3,417.10 $1,476.10 $2,952.20 $3,837.86 12.31% 
UnitedHealthcare SignatureValue Alliance $1,091.13 $2,182.26 $2,836.94 $1,184.58 $2,369.16 $3,079.91 8.56% 
UnitedHealthcare SignatureValue Harmony $937.39 $1,874.78 $2,437.21 $1,005.02 $2,010.04 $2,613.05 7.21% 
Western Health Advantage HMO $807.23 $1,614.46 $2,098.80 $914.27 $1,828.54 $2,377.10 13.26% 

Basic Premiums - Region 2 
Fresno, Imperial, Inyo, Kern, Kings, Madera, Orange, San Diego, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Tulare and Ventura 

Anthem Blue Cross Select HMO $807.71 $1,615.42 $2,100.05 $919.00 $1,838.00 $2,389.40 13.78% 
Anthem Blue Cross Traditional HMO $1,034.38 $2,068.76 $2,689.39 $1,110.97 $2,221.94 $2,888.52 7.40% 
Blue Shield Access+ HMO $869.14 $1,738.28 $2,259.76 $948.53 $1,897.06 $2,466.18 9.13% 
Blue Shield Trio HMO $810.24 $1,620.48 $2,106.62 $909.10 $1,818.20 $2,363.66 12.20% 
Health Net Salud y Más $684.77 $1,369.54 $1,780.40 $823.49 $1,646.98 $2,141.07 20.26% 
Kaiser Permanente $904.95 $1,809.90 $2,352.87 $944.34 $1,888.68 $2,455.28 4.35% 
PERS Gold $799.44 $1,598.88 $2,078.54 $864.75 $1,729.50 $2,248.35 8.17% 
PERS Platinum $1,151.50 $2,303.00 $2,993.90 $1,258.76 $2,517.52 $3,272.78 9.31% 
Sharp Performance Plus $833.24 $1,666.48 $2,166.42 $868.45 $1,736.90 $2,257.97 4.23% 
UnitedHealthcare SignatureValue Alliance $837.88 $1,675.76 $2,178.49 $890.66 $1,781.32 $2,315.72 6.30% 
UnitedHealthcare SignatureValue Harmony $792.65 $1,585.30 $2,060.89 $819.64 $1,639.28 $2,131.06 3.41% 

Basic Premiums - Region 3 
Los Angeles, Riverside and San Bernardino 

Anthem Blue Cross Select HMO $841.13 $1,682.26 $2,186.94 $916.88 $1,833.76 $2,383.89 9.01% 
Anthem Blue Cross Traditional HMO $1,012.67 $2,025.34 $2,632.94 $1,065.46 $2,130.92 $2,770.20 5.21% 
Blue Shield Access+ HMO $756.65 $1,513.30 $1,967.29 $828.48 $1,656.96 $2,154.05 9.49% 
Blue Shield Trio HMO $704.69 $1,409.38 $1,832.19 $738.11 $1,476.22 $1,919.09 4.74% 
Health Net Salud y Más $630.13 $1,260.26 $1,638.34 $714.40 $1,428.80 $1,857.44 13.37% 
Kaiser Permanente $865.41 $1,730.82 $2,250.07 $926.52 $1,853.04 $2,408.95 7.06% 
PERS Gold $785.28 $1,570.56 $2,041.73 $868.15 $1,736.30 $2,257.19 10.55% 
PERS Platinum $1,131.47 $2,262.94 $2,941.82 $1,263.73 $2,527.46 $3,285.70 11.69% 
UnitedHealthcare SignatureValue Alliance $826.44 $1,652.88 $2,148.74 $866.40 $1,732.80 $2,252.64 4.84% 
UnitedHealthcare SignatureValue Harmony $734.76 $1,469.52 $1,910.38 $756.28 $1,512.56 $1,966.33 2.93% 

Basic Premiums - Out of State 
Kaiser Permanente Out of State $1,312.45 $2,624.90 $3,412.37 $1,422.26 $2,844.52 $3,697.88 8.37% 
PERS Platinum $1,146.86 $2,293.72 $2,981.84 $1,244.55 $2,489.10 $3,235.83 8.52% 

32



EC Agenda Item 7 

REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA LIBRARY COOPERATIVE 

DATE:  August 22, 2024  
FROM: Christine Powers, Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Mentorship Program Update and Approval of Materials (ACTION) 

BACKGROUND:  The Administrative Council of the Southern California Library 
Cooperative (SCLC) established the Leadership and Professional Development 
Committee in August 2023 to emphasize building future library leaders, creating 
professional development opportunities for the member library systems, and facilitating 
network and relationship-building between member systems, including the 
implementation of a mentorship program. This Committee will allow experienced library 
staff to mentor others, strengthen leadership skills, create meaningful relationships 
between library cultures in a cost-effective manner, and support and strengthen SCLC’s 
initiatives and objectives, as laid out in its Strategic Plan.  

At its first meeting, held on April 22, 2024, the Committee established the SCLC 
Mentorship Program, and provided feedback on the framework of the program. 
Feedback from this discussion included the following: 

• Establish a goal for the program.
• Regarding enrollment, encourage inclusiveness, but ultimately leave it up to each

Administrative Council member to promote the program within their respective
library systems.

• Would ideally like to have a one-to-one pairing for mentors and mentees,
although it may be possible to have one mentor for two mentees, if desired.

• Partners are free to choose where to meet, and should aim to meet at least once
a month, up to two hours per month.

• The program will run from January to September 30 of each year.
• Have supervisors sign off on mentee participation.

Based on the feedback received during that meeting, application and recruitment 
materials were developed and approved by the Committee during their last meeting in 
July. The Committee also established two ad hoc committees: one that will review 

33



applications and pair mentors to mentees, and another that will work to establish 
training materials for mentors and mentees.  

Another item for consideration by the Administrative Council is a waiver that 
participating member libraries would sign to hold SCLC harmless of any claims that may 
arise. Should there be interest in requiring such a waiver, SCLC’s legal counsel can 
draft one, and staff will work with each Administrative Council member to obtain a 
signed waiver before their staff participates in the Mentorship Program. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend to the Administrative Council the approval of the 
materials provided in the Exhibit of this report and provide feedback on member 
waivers. 

EXHIBITS: 
a. Recruitment Flyer
b. Mentor Application
c. Mentee Application
d. Mentorship Agreement

34



SCLC Mentorship Benefits & Program Description 

What are the benefits of participating in the SCLC Mentorship Program? 

Mentorship is a valuable relationship that contributes to both personal and professional 
development. Mentorship programs offer valuable benefits for both mentors and 
mentees. Workers with mentors report high job satisfaction – 91% of those with mentors 
feel satisfied with their jobs compared to those without. Mentorship programs also 
provide personal career development for both mentors and mentees, as mentorship 
fosters personal growth, expands networks, and enhances professional skills for both 
parties. Organizations with mentorship programs also often experience better employee 
retention rates. While this program spans dozens of library systems, the goal is to 
improve retention in the library field. 

As more and more library professionals are reaching the age of retirement, it is 
essential that current library managers are engaging in succession planning for their 
industry. Through mentorship programs like this, managers from across the 40 SCLC 
library systems can connect with library staff that are seeking coaching in the variety of 
library specializations, services and departments that are found throughout these public 
library buildings and administrative teams. 

Why become a mentee? 

Mentorship programs offer several benefits for mentees: 

• Guidance and Support: Mentees receive personalized guidance from
experienced mentors. They can seek advice on career decisions, skill
development, and personal growth.

• Skill Development: Mentees learn from their mentor’s expertise, gaining practical
skills and knowledge.

• Networking Opportunities: Through their mentor, mentees gain access to a
broader professional network, which can lead to job opportunities and
connections.

• Increased Confidence: Having a mentor who believes in their abilities boosts
mentees’ self-confidence.

• Career Development: Mentees learn about career paths, industry trends, and
potential growth opportunities.

• Emotional Support: Mentors provide encouragement during challenging times
and help mentees navigate workplace dynamics.

35

EC Agenda Item 7a



Why become a mentor? 

Mentorship programs offer several benefits for mentors: 

• Leadership Development: As mentors, current library managers can enhance
their leadership skills by guiding and supporting mentees.

• Personal Fulfillment: Helping others succeed brings a sense of fulfillment and
purpose. 

• Networking: Mentors expand their professional network through mentee’s
connections.

• Skill Refinement: Teaching and advising mentees sharpen mentors’ own skills.
• Fresh Perspectives: Mentors gain insights from mentees, fostering creativity and

growth. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

Program Description 

Program Duration 

The Mentorship program will run from January 1 through September 30 of each year. 

Application Period 

Applications will be accepted from October 1 - 31 for the following year’s program. 

Mentor/Mentee Pairing Process and Notifications 

Mentors and mentees will be paired by the Leadership & Professional Development 
Committee in November after the application period closes. Notifications of the pairings 
will be sent out to mentors and mentees in December. 

Mentorship Agreement Form 

Once paired and notified, the mentor and mentee will fill out the Mentorship Agreement 
Form that identified their goals of the program, and frequency and length of their 
meetings. This form will also need to be approved by the mentee’s manager or 
supervisor. 

Meeting Expectations 

Successful mentorship is achieved by regular meetings and communication.  Mentors 
and mentees are encouraged to meet once to twice a month, although this will be 
established at the discretion of each pair. 

Remember, mentorship is a mutually rewarding relationship! 

36



SCLC Mentorship Application: Mentor 

Date: _____/_____/_____ 

Full Name: ________________________  Phone number: ______________________ 

Email: ________________________________________________________________ 

What organization do you currently work for? ________________________________ 

What is your current position? ____________________________________________ 

What school(s) did you graduate from? (If you don’t’ have a degree, please write N/A)  

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Are you willing to have a long-distance mentee (i.e. provide virtual mentorship)? ______ 

Would you be willing to have multiple mentees (2 max)? ________________________ 

What interests you about being a mentor? ___________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

What are your areas of expertise? _________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

37

EC Agenda Item 7b



SCLC Mentorship Application: Mentee 

Date: _____/_____/_____ 

Full Name: ________________________  Phone number: ______________________ 

Email: ________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________ 

What is your current position? _____________________________________________ 

Are you currently in school? If so, please list the school you are attending: 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Are you willing to have a long-distance mentor, i.e. provide virtual mentorship? _______ 

What interests you about being a mentee? ___________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

What qualities and skillsets are you looking for in a mentor? _____________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

If you already have a mentor in mind, please list their name. (Keep in mind, we are  

unable to guarantee that you will be paired with this person) _____________________ 

What experience(s) do you hope to gain by participating in this program? ___________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

38

EC Agenda Item 7c



SCLC Mentorship Agreement Form 

Introduction 

As a mentor and mentee of the SCLC Mentorship Program, we are voluntarily entering 
into a mentoring relationship from which we expect mutual benefits and investment. We 
want this to be a rewarding, rich experience with our time together focused on the 
professional development of the mentee and the growth of our relationship. With this 
goal in mind, we have agreed upon the terms and conditions of our relationship as 
outlined in this agreement. 

Goals 

We hope to achieve… To accomplish this, we will… 

Privacy 

Mentors and mentees will keep information shared through the mentoring relationship 
private. If there is any inappropriate interactions or behavior, mentors or mentees are 
obligated to report this to the SCLC Executive Director immediately. 

Frequency of Meetings 

We will attempt to meet at least _____ time(s) a week / every other week / per month for 
_____ hour(s). If we cannot attend a scheduled meeting, we agree to notify one another 
in advance. 

Duration of Relationship 

The SCLC Mentorship program begins on January 1 and is completed on September 30 
of each year. 

39

EC Agenda Item 7d



No Fault Termination 

We are committed to frequent, open, and honest communication in our relationship. We 
will discuss and attempt to resolve any conflicts as they arise. If, however, one of us 
needs to terminate the relationship for any reason, we agree to abide by one another’s 
decision and report this to the SCLC Executive Director immediately. 

Mentor Printed Name _________________________________ 

Mentor Signature ____________________________________ 

Date _____________________ 

Mentor Printed Name _________________________________ 

Mentor Signature ____________________________________ 

Date _____________________ 

Mentee’s Manager or Library System Administration Authorization 

I approve of ______________________ participating in the SCLC Mentorship Program 
 (Mentee Name) 

from January 1 - September 30, ________ in the terms set above in this agreement. 
   (Year) 

Mentee’s Manager Printed Name _______________________________ 

Mentee’s Manager Signature __________________________________ 

Date _______________________ 

40


	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Posting_Agenda_08222024.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Action_Items_Form.pdf
	SCLC_FY2324_EC_Item_03a_Minutes_Drafts_05292024.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_05_Budget_Status_Staff_Report.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_05a_Budget_Status_Report.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_05b_Budget_Status_Bank_Statements.pdf
	042024
	052024
	062024

	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_06_Medical_Insurance_Review_Staff_Report.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_06a_Medical_Insurance_CalPERS_Premium.pdf
	StateBasicPSPMTiers-Pg1
	StateMedicarePSPMTiers-Pg2
	RegionPSPMTier-Pg3

	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_07_Mentorship_Program_Staff_Report.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_07a_Recruitment Flyer_Exhibit.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_07b_Mentor_Application_Exhibit.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_07c_Mentee_Application_Exhibit.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_07d_Mentorship_Agreement_Exhibit.pdf



